Word of Life Family Fellowship 2016

# Prayers

The effective, fervent prayer of a righteous man avails much.

Luke 11: 1-4 Now it came to pass, as He was praying in a certain place, when He ceased, that one of His disciples said to Him, "Lord, teach us to pray, as John also taught his disciples."

So He said to them, "When you pray, say:

Section 1 Our Father in heaven, Hallowed be Your name.

Section 2 Your kingdom come. Your will be done On earth as it is in heaven.

Section 3 Give us day by day our daily bread.

Section 4 And forgive us our sins, For we also forgive everyone who is indebted to us.

Section 5 And do not lead us into temptation, But deliver us from the evil one."

# Table of Contents

1. Our Father in heaven, Hallowed be Your name	1-1
Praises to Our Father in Heaven	1-1
2. Your kingdom come. Your will be done on earth as <i>it is</i> in heaven	2-1
Daily Consecration Prayer	2-1
Prayer for the Local Church	2-2
Prayer for Philadelphia Region	2-3
Marriages	
Salvation for Unsaved Loved Ones	2-5
Pray for John Yamin Ministries	2-6
Jesus is Lord over our Nation	2-7
Prayer for the Office of President	2-8
Blessing for Our Church	2-9
Fulfilling Father God's Assignment Today	2-10
Prayer for Mission Trips	2-11
Prayer of Blessing for Liberia	2-12
3. Give us day by day our daily bread	3-1
Commanding the Blessing	3-1
Calling in the Harvest	
Prayer for Assemblies	3-3
4. And forgive us our sins, For we also forgive everyone who is indebted to us	4-1
Prayer of Forgiveness	4-1
5. And do not lead us into temptation, But deliver us from the evil one	5-1
The Lord Fights My Battles	5-1
Submit to God. Oppose the devil and he will flee from you.	5-2
Warfare Prayer for our Marriages	5-3
Warfare Prayer for Liberia	5-4
This is the Day the Lord has Made	5-5

Updated 5/29/2016

# Praises to Our Father in Heaven

Father in heaven, we thank you and praise you that you are our Abba Father, blessed forevermore, creator of heaven and earth, doing wonders. You are everlasting, infinite in mercy and grace. Father you are kind and loving and patient. You never leave us nor forsake us. You are perfect and righteous in all your ways. You are our Savior and deliverer in whom we trust and take refuge. Your everlasting arms are underneath us. We worship and adore you.

You do exceedingly abundantly more than we can ask or think according to the power that works in us. All of your promises are yes and amen in Christ Jesus. We praise you Father. You are the awesome God, the baptizer with the Holy Spirit and with fire, good to all, the God of our salvation, high and lifted up. You are Jehovah Jireh, our provider. You are the Lord of all in whom we live and move and have our being. Your name is above all names. You are our reconciler and redeemer who reigns forever strong and mighty in whom we dwell.

Father, you uphold all things by the Word of your power in whom there is no variableness, neither shadow of turning. You execute righteousness and justice for all who are oppressed and vengeance upon our enemies. Lord, you are the same yesterday, today and forever.

# **Daily Consecration Prayer**

Father God, I am yours today and forever. Your will for me today, I accept cheerfully and obediently. Teach me your wisdom, discretion and sound judgment for everything I think, say and do today. Give me the grace to walk in the light of your Word and to give no place to darkness at all. Give me the grace to be a good steward of my time and of the gifts and calling upon my life so I may be a blessing to all families and nations of the earth. Give me the grace to put your kingdom first and to win souls. Give me the grace to fight the good fight of faith, to give glory to you Lord, and to be fully persuaded that what you have promised you are performing in my life today.

Give me the grace to stay totally alive to you Lord and reckon myself dead to sin. As Jesus is, so am I in this world. Jesus is made unto me wisdom, righteousness, sanctification and redemption. Let your grace reign in me through righteousness to eternal life. Thank you for the ministry of reconciliation and the grace to fulfill it today. Thank you for the grace to always love, always forgive, and always bless. Thank you for the grace to always do those things that please you and help me to finish the work you have given me in the earth.

# **Prayer for the Local Church**

We, the body of related believers honoring Jesus as Lord at Word of Life Family Fellowship, enforce God's original plan and purposes in our lives and in the life of this ministry. We are citizens of heaven, a holy nation, and we have what we say. We are doers of the Word and not just hearers only. We are what the Word of God says we are - more than conquerors. We can do what the Word of God says we can do. We can do all things through Christ because we believe, and all things are possible to us. We hold fast to our confession of faith and we do not waver, turn coward, faint, lose heart or give up.

We are the righteousness of God in Christ Jesus. There is therefore now no condemnation to us because we are in Christ Jesus. We give no place to guilt, shame or condemnation. We are accepted in the beloved and nothing can separate us from God's love. We are sanctified and delivered from this present evil age.

We are healed by the stripes of Jesus. We have a sound mind and body. Lord, you satisfy our mouths with good words and our youth is renewed like the eagles. We wait upon you Lord and you renew our strength. We run and do not grow weary; we walk and do not faint. We are loosed from every infirmity by the resurrection healing power of God which flows through our bodies, the temples of the Holy Spirit. We are redeemed from debt, poverty, lack and the curse. God has blessed every household of Word of Life Family Fellowship and we are living under an open heaven. The blessing of the Lord makes us rich and He adds no sorrow with it. We are increasing more and more and wealth and riches are in our house. We are the head and not the tail, above only and not beneath, the lender and not the borrower. We are sowing bountifully and reaping a bountiful harvest on every seed sown.

We have strong marriages and families that are knit together in love and rooted in the Word of God. Wives are submitting to their own husbands as unto the Lord and husbands love their wives as Christ loves the church. Our youth worship the Lord and honor their parents. We speak life, love, righteousness, peace and joy in the Holy Spirit over our households. We give no place to the devil in our families.

Word of Life Family Fellowship prospers in everything we set our hands to. We are accomplishing the good works God prepared beforehand for us to walk in. We command kingdom finances and all of heaven and earth's resources stored up for us to come forth now without delay. We call in everything prepared for us before the foundation of the world to finish the work that the Lord has entrusted to us. The wealth of the sinner is stored up for the righteous (Prov. 13:22) and we command that stored up wealth to come to us now. The Word of God is prevailing in every area of our lives. We are born of incorruptible seed and the Word is producing one hundred fold. This is the victory that overcomes the world, even our faith. Now thanks be to God who always causes us to triumph in Christ.

In Jesus name, Amen.

### **Prayer for Philadelphia Region**

#### Agree together in faith.

Heavenly Father, we come boldly to your throne of grace on behalf of your church, the body of Christ in the city of Philadelphia, the Delaware Valley, and this region. We pray for spiritual renewal and awakening in the hearts of all the residents in this region. We pray that all be saved and come to a knowledge of the truth. We speak the Blessing on individuals, families, neighborhoods, businesses, and every area of government with your presence. Your kingdom come and your will be done as it is in heaven in this region. Restore wholeness to our communities and make them fruitful.

Father, restore faith and vision for what is possible with you. Raise up and establish entrepreneurs to fill every vacant building, office and retail facility with flourishing businesses. Bring businesses worldwide to establish headquarters, manufacturing sites, and branch locations in this region that will employ thousands and replenish the desolate places.

Father, we pray for all elected and appointed officials to operate in integrity and do what is right in your sight. Grace them to do good works that will sustain steady growth and employment. Continue to raise up leaders who will stand for the Word of Truth and godly values. When the righteous are in power the people are glad. We pray that your hand be upon our elected officials as they administrate and govern the affairs of this region. May your wisdom lead them to make sound decisions that will cause us to be the model of state and city government establishing unity in our communities, academic excellence, strength, and peace in our families.

Father, by your grace, eradicate poverty, disease, homelessness, crime, violence, hatred, corruption and apathy. Give us boldness to address every challenge and move every mountain. Give us wisdom for the road ahead and enable us to lead with a legacy in mind. Turn the hearts of the voters toward electing righteous men and women to government offices that the people may rejoice.

Father, we thank you for protecting this region and our efforts with your angels, the blood of Jesus, and a wall of blessing. Peace and safety will be the norm and not the exception. We declare that no force of darkness will hinder us from advancing. Thank you, Father that you make all grace abound toward us at all times for every good work. We lack nothing in accomplishing your will in Philadelphia, this region, and in the earth.

Father, send forth an outpouring of your Holy Spirit, wisdom, truth, love, joy, peace, righteousness, faith and your Word to saturate this entire region.

We thank you for the success of every God ordained crusade and meeting held to gather in your harvest and build your church. Thank you Father that your Word will not return void but shall accomplish everything it is sent out to perform in this region.

#### **Marriages**

Father, in the name of Jesus, we pray and confess that we endure long and are patient and kind; that we are never envious and never boil over with jealousy. We are not boastful or vainglorious, and we do not display ourselves haughtily. We are not conceited, arrogant or inflated with pride.

We are not rude or unmannerly, and we do not act unbecomingly. We do not insist on our own rights or our own way for we are not self-seeking, touchy, fretful or resentful. We take no account of an evil done to us and pay no attention to a suffered wrong. We do not rejoice in injustice or unrighteousness, but we rejoice when righteousness and truth prevail.

We bear up under anything and everything that comes. We are ever ready to believe the best of each other. Our hopes do not fade under any circumstances. We endure everything without weakening. Our love never fails - it never fades out or becomes obsolete, our love never comes to an end. We purposely and consciously walk in the agape love of God.

We are confessing that our lives and our family's lives express truth in all things that we say and do. We esteem and delight in one another, forgiving one another readily and freely as God in Christ has forgiven us. We are imitators of the Lord and follow His example as beloved children imitating their Father.

Thank you, Father, that our marriages grows stronger each day because they are founded on your Word and on your love.

In the name of Jesus we have healthy marriages. Amen.

Scriptures:

1 Corinthians 13:4-8; 1 Corinthians 14:1; Ephesians 4:15, 32; Ephesians 5:1, 2

# **Salvation for Unsaved Loved Ones**

Father, in the Name of Jesus, we come before you in prayer and faith believing that all things are possible with you. We believe your Word and you watch over your Word to perform it. You wish above all things that all men should be saved. Therefore, Father, we bring (our unsaved loved ones) before you to be saved, NOW! You said that we can have whatsoever we say. We say, in the Name of Jesus, (our loved ones) are saved, NOW! Salvation has come to (our loved ones') house, in Jesus Name!

Lord, we ask you to open their hearts, open their eyes, open their ears, and open their minds to hear and understand the gospel. We ask you to send spirit-filled laborers to cross their paths, presenting the clear and concise gospel that they will not be able to resist.

Father, we release the angels to do spiritual warfare on (our loved ones) behalf - bringing full repentance. We praise you Father for this is so.

Satan, in the Name of Jesus, we bind your blinding spirit of antichrist and we loose (our loved ones) from your assignment against them as they have the opportunity to make Jesus Lord of their lives.

In Jesus name. Amen! Amen!

Scripture References:

- Luke 19:10
- Matthew 18:18
- II Timothy 2:28
- II Peter 3:9
- Mark 11:23
- Luke 10:2
- Psalm 34:7
- Isaiah 63:9
- Romans 2:4

# **Pray for John Yamin Ministries**

The ministry is the work and we are the ministers. Often ministries are looked at as an entity unto themselves and prayed over that way. We are praying over the work of John Yamin Ministries that is to say, what the work is, the preparation of the work, and for those who labor in it.

(Adapted from Romans 15:30 – 32) Now we exhort you, brothers and sisters, for the Lord Jesus Christ's sake, and for the love of the Spirit that you strive together with us in prayers to God the Father, that we may be delivered from those that do not believe. That our service which we have for [the greater Philadelphia area] may be acceptable to the saints and that we may come together with joy by the will of God and may be refreshed together.

Please pray that the saints in the greater Philadelphia area walk in the fullness of the blessing of the gospel of Jesus Christ.

# Jesus is Lord over our Nation

Father God, as our lawgiver, we decree that only you can give and inspire the laws that our legislators propose, vote on and establish for this nation, in our federal, state and local governments and for all our foreign-policy. Every law in this nation, written or unwritten that is contrary to God's law and government, we cancel and abolish in Jesus name. Every law of this nation is to submit to the laws of the kingdom of God. Every unjust law is to be abolished. No law in this nation shall be established or remain that is contrary to God's revealed will or in opposition to the truth of the new covenant.

The government of this nation rests on the shoulders of the Prince of Peace, and God's government will continue to increase and bring peace, order, judgment and justice to the United States of America. We release the zeal of the Lord to consume and saturate the believers whom God has positioned as influencers and architects to realign the administration and the work of our three branches of government within the kingdom of God.

The stone that the builders rejected is established as the cornerstone of this nation. That stone has smitten the image built in the minds of men by the god of this world and by the earthly kingdoms. We declare this nation's judicial branch of government is a seat of justice where Jesus Christ is Lord. We bind all demonic spirits that would influence our Supreme Court justices and all judges in this nation. We bind every satanic influence over the White House, over the Congress, over the Judicial Branch, over our state governments, and over all local governments.

We declare that Jesus is Lord over the Delaware Valley and over the state of Pennsylvania.

# **Prayer for the Office of President**

Father God, we pray for the President of the United States. Give the President your judgments, that the Office of President may be established in your righteousness. Give him your vision for this nation. Let him know you will never let him be ashamed as long as he follows and serves you. Protect him from wicked men with insincere motives that try to erode respect for the office of president, to distort the truth, and distract him from his calling. Surround him with godly counsel.

It is the glory of kings to search out a matter. Cause him to search out matters that elevate and promote truth and righteousness and quench evil. We take authority over the blinders in his mind that cause him to call good evil and evil good. Open his eyes and remind him of the Christian heritage of this nation.

Father cause him to hear the voice of the Good Shepherd and the voice of a stranger may he not follow. Thank you Lord the anointing destroys every yoke and every burden in his life. Give him grace to be strong and of good courage. As he confesses you, Jesus, before man; you will confess him before the Father.

We pray the fear of the Lord is the beginning of his wisdom. Cause your Word to give him light and understanding. Sanctify him with your truth; fill him with the Spirit of truth and guide him into all truth.

# **Blessing for Our Church**

Thank you, Father for our members, their children, grandchildren, and those under their care, their spouses, future spouses and their descendants who are the seed of the blessed of the Lord. You said, "I will pour out My Spirit upon your seed and My Blessing upon your offspring," Isaiah 44:3. Also they would be mighty upon the earth, Psalm 112:2. So now we release the showers of blessing upon them because the seed of the righteous is blessed. We thank you that the works of their hands are blessed. Through our seed all families and nations are blessed.

All nations are calling them blessed. We thank you that the blessings of God are upon them and are overtaking them. They are blessed coming in and blessed going out. They are blessed in the city and blessed in the field. All their seed is blessed, their school work is blessed, their businesses and ministries are blessed. All of their increase gathered into storehouses is blessed.

They are blessed in the land that you have given them. They are blessed to walk in the truth. They are so blessed that people see their covenant with you and fear them and tremble at all the goodness and for all the prosperity you procure for them. They are plenteous in goods and abundant in fruitfulness. They are blessed in their season with favor and great increase.

They are blessed to be the head above only and not beneath. They are blessed to serve Father God alone. They are blessed to dwell in the house of the Lord forever. They are blessed with sound judgment and righteous works. They are blessed to hear the Word of God and keep it. They are blessed to serve as good stewards, sons and daughters of the Most High God. They are blessed because they believe. They are blessed because they are in the seed of Abraham. They are blessed, their iniquities are forgiven, and their sins are remitted. They are blessed to do God's will and partake of the tree of life.

Thank you that they are blessed as they wait upon you Lord. You satisfy them with long life. Your Blessing makes them rich and you add no sorrow with it. They are blessed of the Lord because they trust in you and obey you. They are blessed of the Lord from this time forth and even forevermore.

# Fulfilling Father God's Assignment Today

I acknowledge Father God's divine assignment and scheduled for me today and this week.

I acknowledge the angels will assist me this day in my full obedience to the Lord to bring total victory and good success. I place a hedge of protection around my life and family and those working closely with us. I stand in the gap and make up the hedge that destruction shall not come near the borders. I thank you Father for the watchmen on the walls to announce potential threats and for the angels to subdue trouble before it can start.

Today I bring every thought captive to the obedience of Christ. Carnal thoughts have no expression in my life. I speak divine favor, order and productivity to my day, my plans and schedule, my work, my projects, meetings and activities, my desk and office, and my entire life. Thank you that my life is totally aligned with every aspect of your perfect will. My thoughts are from your thoughts, my ways and from your ways, my words are from your words and the Father within me does the works.

Every demonic spiritual force that is raised up in opposition to me, I command you to be my footstool in the name of Jesus. I bind every demonic spirit that would hinder me from completing my tasks, projects, work and assignments. Let God arise in me in me this day in the name of Jesus.

May the fire of God devour every enemy of righteousness and may the judgment of God be pronounced, executed and enforced against every and all spiritual wickedness. Thank you Lord your glory rises up in and around me, surrounding and filling me with your glory and holy presence. Thank you by your grace I fulfill the work of faith in the power of the Holy Spirit. Now today I go forth and bear much fruit that will remain.

# **Prayer for Mission Trips**

Father God, I lift before you our Pastor and ministry team as they go forth to preach the gospel. We pray the kingdom of God, and demonstration of the Spirit in power. Signs, wonders and miracles confirm the word that is preached at every meeting. We pray that all manner of sickness and disease, infirmity and brokenness be healed, every captive be set free, every mind be renewed, every life be transformed and the lost in attendance be saved.

Father, may Revelation knowledge come forth through the ministry of the word that will cause the hearers to prosper and have good success. Impart great faith and give them wisdom from above that will lift them up and bring them to honor and favor before you Lord and men. Cause seeds of the word to grow and bring forth a harvest of blessing that makes them rich without sorrow or painful toil. Impart spiritual truths and principles that empowered the hearers to get wealth and divine strategies that bring great increase, create jobs, open doors for business opportunities that no man can shut. Bring forth abundant resources, breakthrough, promotions, and a flourishing kingdom economy, bringing prosperity and abundance to the communities that were once desolate and ruined.

We declare that our Pastor and the team are redeemed and are therefore protected and covered by the blood of Jesus from all schemes and plots of the devil. We forbid any demonic activity against, their possessions, travel schedules, transportation, health, meals and sleeping accommodations. We declare that no hurt, harm, danger or accident shall come near them. Father give your angels charge over them to keep, defend and preserve them in all of their ways.

Father we pray that you will draw multitudes that every meeting is filled to capacity. May every aspect of these meetings be done in a spirit of excellence and may your glory fill the services. We praise you that every need is met from your abundant supply. We pray that the plans, purposes and calling you have placed in the hearts of your people will be fulfilled. We thank you that this mission trip is a complete success.

In Jesus name, amen.

# Prayer of Blessing for Liberia

Heavenly Father, we come boldly to your throne of grace on behalf of Liberia. Lord, continue to watch over and preserve Liberia. We pray that all be saved and come to a knowledge of the truth. Bless every individual, family, neighborhood, business and every area of government with your presence. May your kingdom come and your will be done. Bring restoration wholeness to Liberia and make them fruitful.

We pray for a spiritual renewal and an awakening in the hearts of the residents of Liberia. Restore faith and vision for what is possible you. We pray for all elected and appointed officials to operate in integrity and do what is right in your sight. Father, help them to do good works that will sustain steady growth and them appointment throughout their jurisdiction.

Father, we pray that your hand be upon the elected officials as they administrate and govern the affairs of the country. May your wisdom lead them to make sound decisions that will cause peace in their families of Liberia and sustainable economic growth.

Father, eradicate poverty, disease, homelessness, crime, violence, hatred, corruption and apathy. Give wisdom for the road ahead and enable Liberians to lead the next generation into the blessing of the Lord. Ignite the hearts of the leaders of Liberia with passion and renewed vision for the destiny you have given their country. Use your influence to turn the hearts of the voters towards electing the righteous to government offices that the people may rejoice.

Father, thank you for protecting Liberia and our efforts with your angels, the blood of Jesus, and a wall of blessing. We pray that peace and safety will be the norm and not the exception. We declare that no force of darkness will hinder us from advancing.

As we move forward, transform our thinking and our expectations to match Yours. Bring forth and abundant supply of resources to complete the work ahead of us. Grant us insight and ability to build a foundation for many generations to come. We declare that by the blessing of the righteous and God's favor, Liberia is exalted. We thank you Lord that every outreach, every crusade, every meeting and every church service brings great fruit that remains.

We bind you Satan in the name of Jesus. You will not hinder our mission in any way. We stop any plan you have to hinder or abort the will of God from being done in our mission trip to Liberia and in any of our meetings, gatherings, evangelistic outreaches and any time the saints are gathered in your name.

# **Commanding the Blessing**

We thank you Father that we are rich. We are the seed of Abraham. The blessing of Abraham is ours. Everything we set our hands to prospers. We are heirs of the world, heirs of God and joint heirs with Jesus Christ. We have inherited all things. The kingdom of God rules and reigns in our hearts, in our homes, in our families, in our communities, and in our nation. We're the head and not the tail, above only and not beneath. We are the lender and not the borrower.

We are sowers and reapers and we call forth the harvest of our seed sown. All these blessings have overtaken us. As we hear the voice of the Lord our God, we guard and keep his Word at all times. We are blessed in the city and blessed in the field. God has commanded the blessing to our storehouses. Our seed is righteous and blessed.

We are increasing more and more together with our natural children and our spiritual children. Men fear us because of the prosperity God has poured out upon us. God's wisdom has produced wealth and riches in our homes and in our lives.

# **Calling in the Harvest**

Let the people praise you Father, let all the people praise you. Then shall the earth yield her increase... Psalm 67:5-6

Father God in heaven, thank you and praise you that you are the Lord of the harvest and the multiplier of our seed sown. We keep your Word and walk by faith. You keep your covenant and your mercy is with us; you love us and bless us, and you bless the fruit of our land. You give the increase.

We praise you for causing our land in which we sow to yield her increase and bear fruit. We are tithers and we praise you for open windows of heaven and for rebuking the devourer for our sakes. We receive the full measure of increase from our seed sown. We praise you that we are a delightful land and all nations call us blessed. You said you would bring us into a land where we would not lack anything; where you have given us power to get great wealth to establish your covenant this day as you swore to our Fathers.

We speak to every seed sown concerning giving and receiving, that fruit may abound to our account: every seed sown into a local church or ministry, including our local church, ministry, and missions into the kingdom of God, seed sown to the poor, all offerings and precious seed, gifts of kindness and blessing to individuals and ministries, grow to maturity and produce a thousand-fold now in this present time. We give cheerfully and we rejoice as the soil yields its increase back to us good measure, pressed down, shaken together, and running over. We sow bountifully and we are now reaping bountifully 1000 times over. Father, we pray angels protect the harvest and bring every harvest into the hands of its rightful owner.

Harvest come forth! Harvest come forth! Harvest come forth! We receive the full harvest from our seed sown right now.

# **Prayer for Assemblies**

Father God, we thank you for blessing Word of Life Family Fellowship, John Yamin Ministries, our members, partners, elders, deacons, helps ministry, employees, visitors, other ministries we partner with, and every person saved through this ministry and its outreaches.

We thank you also for the honor of praying for the people of God and the visitors that you shall feed the Word of Life to in all our services and those watching or hearing by way of technology. We thank you that this gospel of the kingdom shall be preached in all the world for a witness to all nations and then shall the end come.

Thank you that your Word and your Spirit impart wisdom and grace to your church to reign in the earth and the gates of hell shall not prevail against it. The Lord Jesus has made us kings and priests to our God and we shall reign on the earth.

Father God, we have your divine nature and your precious promises. We thank you for giving us all things pertaining to life and godliness through knowing you and your Word. We receive the fullness of our redemption to establish your kingdom in this earth. We receive power and riches. We receive wisdom and strength. We receive honor and glory and blessing as heirs of God and joint heirs with Christ.

Father we pray for all of our services. Thank you that the ministry of the Word is not with enticing words of man's wisdom but in the demonstration of the Spirit and of power. Thank you for signs and wonders confirming your Word. Thank you for the manifestation of the gifts of the Spirit, which are given to everyone that all may profit. We, your church, excel in these gifts to the edifying of the church. We pray for miracles, healings and deliverance, during praise and worship, during the message, at the altar call, at water baptism, through baptism with the Holy Spirit, and prayer after the services.

We thank you that all things are done in our services decently and in order. Lord, perfect your church through the ministry of your Word and the work of the Holy Spirit. Cause your church to lay aside every weight and sin. Sanctify us with your truth. Remove every plant in us that you have not planted. We receive the engrafted Word which is able to save our souls. We are transformed by the renewing of our minds. Thank you for the Spirit of wisdom and revelation in the knowledge of you.

Thank you for the grace to be rooted and grounded in love and to be filled with all the fullness of God. Thank you for the grace for each one of us to make our calling and election sure. Thank you for the grace to forget those things that are behind and reach forward to those things that are before us.

We pray your church will not grow weary in well doing. This is our due season to reap and we shall not faint. You reward those who diligently seek you and walk in your ways. Give us the grace to walk in unconditional love and forgiveness, holding no grudges, free from corrupt communication. Enlighten the eyes of our understanding. Lead us in the way we should go. Give us revelation into your secrets and mysteries of your kingdom. Strengthen us with might by your Spirit in our inner man. Heal the brokenhearted, deliver the captives, set at liberty those that are bruised, destroy every yoke and remove every burden with your anointing.

We remove the blinders from the minds of those who do not believe the gospel. Father, draw the lost with your loving kindness and tender mercies. Grant them repentance and give them grace to believe the gospel and receive the forgiveness of sin. As they are baptized in water, cause every addiction, yoke of bondage, and destructive habit of the flesh to be buried with Christ and cause them to arise totally free and to walk in the newness of life. Wash away their sins with the precious blood of Jesus. Protect them and deliver them from all temptation. Preserve them as they are sanctified by the truth.

We command every obstacle to be destroyed in the name of Jesus that would hinder them from being fitly joined together where the Lord pleases and from completing orientation class or any other discipleship classes.

Lord, we pray for every soul saved through this ministry. Make them strong disciples continuing in your Word. With every revelation of truth, set them free from the bondage of errors, lies and manmade religion. Build in them your image and your likeness. Cause them to be skilled in the Word of righteousness. Cause their senses to be exercised to discern good and evil.

We thank you Father that you restore the years that the enemy has stolen from their lives. Thank you, you heal their bodies and their hearts. Cause them to know your purpose and plan for their lives. Thank you for giving them wisdom to walk in your ways, to think your thoughts and to speak your words.

We pray that their faith fail not and that they will not faint in the day of adversity. We thank you Lord they believe and their whole household is saved. Teach them how to seek first your kingdom and your righteousness that all that they need shall be added unto them.

We speak the blessing of Abraham upon them and upon all godly things they set their hands to. Give them wisdom to apply the Word of God to every area of their life, their family, their job, their business, and their community. Protect them from false religion, error, legalism and hypocrisy. Keep them connected to zoë life in you Lord. We pray they will abide in you and your Words will abide in them. They will ask and they will receive that their joy may be made full.

# **Prayer of Forgiveness**

Ephesians 4:31-32; let all bitterness, wrath, anger, clamor, and evil speaking be put away from you with all malice. Be kind to one another, tenderhearted, forgiving one another, even as God in Christ has forgiven you.

Father, in the name of Jesus, by your grace I commit to live in peace and harmony, not only with the brothers and sisters in the body of Christ, but with all others that I'm associated.

I release all bitterness, resentment, envy, and strife in any form. I give no place for the devil in Jesus name. Now Father, I ask for your forgiveness. By faith, I receive it, having full assurance that I am cleansed from all unrighteousness through Christ Jesus. I ask you to forgive and release all who have wronged and hurt me. I forgive them and release them. Deal with them according to your mercy and grace.

From this moment on, I will walk in the love of God. I will seek peace and grace to conduct myself toward others in a manner that is pleasing to you. I know that I have right standing with you and your ears are attentive to my prayers.

Father, it is written in your Word that your love has been poured out in my heart by the Holy Spirit who has been given to me. I believe that love flows forth into the lives of everyone I know, that I may be filled with and abound in the fruits of righteousness which bring glory and honor to you Lord.

In Jesus name, amen.

Scripture references: Romans 5:5; Mark 11:25; Colossians 1:10; Philippians 2:2

# The Lord Fights My Battles

Father God, we thank you that you are good and you fight our battles for us. We have believed your Word and enter into your rest. You are an enemy to our enemies, an adversary to our adversaries. You contend with those who contend with us. You execute judgment against our spiritual enemies. You set up ambushes against them as we sing praise to you. Cause our praises to still the enemy and the avenger. You have ordained strength out of our mouth.

You make a plain path before us in spite of our enemies. You are with us. You work miracles on our behalf and deliver us with great deliverance. You tread down our enemies and cause every rebellious spirit to submit themselves to you. We speak peace be still to every storm the enemy is trying to stir up in our lives. Thank you for your grace in making a way of escape out of all the temptations that the enemy would bring. We thank you for the ministry of angels to hasten our escape and deliverance from all evil. We thank you Lord, the Son has made us free.

Your truth has made us free indeed and is our shield and buckler. No weapon formed against us prospers. We condemn every word that rises against us in judgment. This is our heritage as servants of the Lord. We tread upon serpents and scorpions and over all the power of the enemy and nothing shall by any means hurt us. We are redeemed from all evil and we are blessed of the Lord. We triumph in Christ, we have great victory. And this is the victory that overcomes the world, even our faith. The greater one dwells within us. The works that Jesus did we can do. We submit ourselves to God and we opposed the enemy and he flees from us. We break every satanic assignment sent against our lives. We break every curse, every spell, every chant, every charm or hex that has been spoken against us. No weapon formed against us shall prosper, and every tongue that rises against us in judgment we condemn. This is the heritage of the servants of the Lord, and our righteousness is from the Lord.

# Submit to God. Oppose the devil and he will flee from you.

#### James 4:7

All power in heaven and earth has been given to the Lord and Savior Jesus Christ and He has given us power to tread on serpents and scorpions and over all the power of the enemy and nothing shall by any means hurt us. With this power, we are taking back our lives and standing our ground and advancing to possess new and greater territory. In the name of Jesus we are reclaiming all ground lost to the enemy. We are marching forward in full force to repossess what is ours.

We are walking in our true identity as one with Christ. We will not pull back in defeat. We are fulfilling God's will, plan and purpose for our lives. We stand firmly on the promises of God and partake of His divine nature. We keep our bodies under subjection at all times. We refuse to be dominated by emotions, fleshly appetites, our environment or memories of the past.

We forgive everyone who's ever offended us, hurt us, betrayed us, deceived us, stolen from us, lied to us, abused us, or come against us in any way. We press toward the mark for the prize of the upward call in Christ Jesus. We fight the good fight of faith and lay hold on eternal life to which we were called; we live and work with passion and zeal as unto the Lord. We pursue God's highest calling and lay aside every weight, time waster, distraction and sin.

#### Warfare Prayer for our Marriages

In the name of Jesus, we take authority over you, Satan, and every demonic spirit that has been sent to attack our marriages in the church, the body of Christ. Satan we are not ignorant of your devices and with the light of the gospel we expose your works of darkness. You will not bring strife and division into our households. You are denied access to our marriages, families and households in the name of Jesus. We oppose you with the blood of Jesus and command you to flee. We are redeemed citizens of the kingdom of heaven and Jesus Christ has destroyed your works. He has disarmed you, made a public spectacle of you, and has triumphed over you.

The Son has made us free indeed. We will not be taken captive. We refuse carnal mindedness which leads to death. We choose to be spiritually minded which is life and peace. We refuse to identify with broken-heartedness. Jesus is anointed to heal the brokenhearted and we choose to be made whole and to remain free indeed. We oppose violence, waste and destruction with the sacrifices of praise and rejoicing in the God of our salvation. We oppose thoughts and feelings of being forsaken and hated with the knowledge that God has promised to make us an eternal excellency.

We oppose the voices that would call us forsaken and desolate. We clothe ourselves and our marriages with humility, the garment of salvation and robes of righteousness. We put on Christ, the new man, and every day we are renewed in the knowledge of God. We put off the old man that is corrupt with deceitful lusts. We reckon ourselves dead unto to sin and alive unto God. We are living sacrifices, holy, and acceptable unto God which is our reasonable service. We let no corrupt communication proceed out of our mouths but that which is good for edification that we may minister grace to our spouses. As husbands and wives we walk worthy of the high calling of Christ upon our lives.

We endeavor to keep the unity of the Spirit in the bond of peace. We are called to glory and honor. We are a holy temple in which God dwells. We grieve not the Holy Spirit. We speak the truth in love and grow up in Him in all things. We honor God by honoring one another. We are strengthened by God's Spirit in our inner man. We know and live in the love of Christ, which bears all things, believes all things, hopes all things, and endures all things. Love never fails. We know the love of Christ and believe nothing shall separate us from His love.

We stay in the love of Christ. We are filled with all of the fullness of God Almighty. We put away all bitterness, wrath and anger. We are kind to one another, tenderhearted, forgiving one another, even as God in Christ has forgiven us. We refuse to be influenced and controlled by the prince of the power of the air, the spirit who works in the children of disobedience. We are dead to sin and alive unto God. What God has joined together let no man separate.

Father, we thank you for healthy whole marriages in Jesus name, amen.

# Warfare Prayer for Liberia

Father in heaven, we come boldly to your throne of grace interceding for Liberia. We thank you that your eyes are upon the righteous and your ears are open to our prayers. Lord, for the sake of the righteous and Liberia, we thank you for preserving this country and bringing restoration and wholeness to all the communities. We pray for spiritual awakening in the hearts of all the residents. Restore faith and vision in this generation and ignite within them a holy fire and godly passion that will destroy every Satanic influence. We decree that Jesus is Lord over Liberia. Every strategy that the enemy has devised against the people in Liberia is hindered and defeated.

Lord, take down all wicked and unrighteous leadership in both public and private sectors and raise up godly leadership in their places, those who are bold in faith, who fear God and not men; those who will rule with wisdom and who will grant your leaders favor and aligned this country and its communities with the kingdom of God.

In the name of Jesus we bind the strong men that have held the people of Liberia in bondage and that have been blocking them from receiving salvation and life in Christ. We bind the spirits of greed, violence, murder, suicide and self destruction. We bind the spirits of hatred, abuse, anger and rage. We bind the spirits of envy, strife, mental oppression, depression and mind control. We bind the spirits behind crime, vandalism, stealing, assault, and gang violence. We bind the spirits of fear, lying, idolatry, witchcraft, antichrist, deception, rejection, pride, jealousy, bitterness and rebellion.

We execute divine judgment against the forces of darkness and cancel every satanic operation and strategy designed against Liberia and its residents. We evict every demonic spirit from the neighborhoods in this country and decree that the works of the devil are destroyed. We speak the blood of Jesus over every household in this country. We declare that the heavenly angels have been given charge over Liberia to protect, guard and defended it, in the name of Jesus.

We loose the Blessing upon every individual, family, neighborhood, business and area of government in Liberia. Every demonic oppression and fear is defeated. We bind the spirit of blindness over their minds in order that the people receive the new birth.

Father, send forth laborers into Liberia preaching the gospel, bringing healing to the brokenhearted, deliverance to the captives and liberty and restoration to them that are bruised. Father, send forth an outpouring of the Holy Spirit, wisdom, truth, love, joy, peace, righteousness, faith, holiness and your word to saturate this entire country.

Father thank you that your word will not return void, but shall accomplish everything it is sent out to perform in Liberia. Father I thank you for the success of every God ordained crusade and meeting held to gather your harvest and build your church. We pray for the faith of every believer in Liberia and that their faith fail not.

#### This is the Day the Lord has Made

Father I thank you that the communication of my faith is effectual by acknowledging every good thing which is in me in Christ Jesus. [Philemon 1:6]

I declare the blood of Jesus over myself, my family, my church and the household of faith within the sphere of influence that the Lord has assigned to us.

With God as my Father, Jesus as my Lord, and the Holy Spirit as my Comforter, truth revealer and power source, today and all the days of my life, I live for the Lord and the building of his kingdom. I will daily seek first the kingdom of God and his righteousness.

My work this day is to believe; to abide in Christ Jesus and his Word; to remain in the rest of God; to sow the word and to reap the harvest; to manifest the kingdom of God; to edify, exhort and encourage; to proclaim the Good News of Jesus Christ; to lay hands on the sick and they recover; to cast out demons and set the captives free; to accomplish the business at hand and bring forth fruit that remains.

I take authority over my day. In the name of Jesus, your kingdom come and your will be done in my life this day as it is in heaven. Today and every day I choose life. I believe in the name of Jesus, and I have eternal life in him. In every situation and decision, I choose life and the righteous way. All things are possible to me because I believe, and all things are working together for my good.

I am a person of vision and by the Holy Spirit I see and decree things to come.

Today I ask what I will and it shall be done for me. If I ask anything in Jesus name, he will do it.

Wisdom is the principal thing; therefore I get the wisdom that is laid up for me. A wholesome tongue is my tree of life. I speak the words of God. I teach the word of God to all nations that they'll do what Jesus says. I will finish the work the Father has given me to do.

I believe I have received solutions and strategies to solve the world's problems so that Gentiles come to our light and kings to the brightness of our rising. I believe I have received solutions and strategies to complete and mature the church; and a platform to present them and finances to implement them and a staff to fulfill them and God's protection to preserve them.

I am redeemed and I have power over all the power of the enemy and I subdue him now. I allow nothing out of my mouth that would defile me or others. The Lord has delivered my enemies into my hand and has made them my footstool. I tread upon the devil and nothing shall by any means hurt me. No weapon formed against me shall prosper. No one can curse me because God has blessed me. No one can keep me from reaching my destiny, even me! I will fight the good fight of faith, I will finish my course. I will keep the faith.

With the Holy Spirit and the Word of God, I enforce Jesus' victory over every enemy and adversary of my soul; every principality, power, ruler of darkness, and spiritual hosts of wickedness in

heavenly places. Satan is defeated. My God is a consuming fire; a wall of fire around me that no enemy can penetrate.

I pulled out all strongholds and cast down imaginations and every high thing that the all to itself against the knowledge of God and I bring into captivity every thought to the obedience of Christ. I possess a renewed mind and a transformed life. I guard and keep my heart and the wicked one touches me not. My shield of faith quenches every fiery dart of the wicked one. God is executing vengeance and recompense on my behalf and daily restores to me everything that has been stolen from me and my ancestors. God avenges me speedily.